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6 THE CHURCH OF

For more than half a century after the
Norman conquest there were no buildings on
this ground. Smithfield was a much larger
open space than i1t is at present, and what 1s
now the Parish of St. Bartholomew the Great
was the eastern part of it.

The first building erected upon the area of
the parish was the church, which remains to
this day, and which was gradually surrounded
by Cloister, Infirmary, Chapter House, Refec-
tory, Great Close, and Little Close, and all the
other appurtenances of a monastic community.
For four hundred years a Priory of Canons
Regular of St. Austin occupied the parish.
This Order came into England early in the
reign of King Henry L., and before his death
nearly fifty monastic houses had been founded
for them. The round arches and curious
arcade of red brick of their most ancient
Priory are still to be seen at Colchester, where,
till 1its partial destruction in the siege of
1648, 1t was the chief chureh of the town.
It was founded a few years before St. Bar-
tholomew’s, and was the premier priory of
the Order in England. From this beginning
the Augustinmian canons extended during
the last twenty years of King Henry I.’s
reign, as far north as Bolton and Nostell
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times, when it is not easy to obtain sufficient
money to support the hospitals of London,
surely it is true of Rahere that

“ Such a man
Might be a copy to these younger times ;
Which, followed well, would demonstrate them now
But goers backward.”

His history is a wonderful example of the
fruitfulness of a resolve to lead a new and use-
ful life. He was an ecclesiastic, and filled the
stall of Chamberlayne’s Wood, in St. Paul’s
Cathedral. His stall was the sixth on the
north side of the choir, and his portion of the
whole psalter, repeated daily by the Chapter,
began with the words, “ It 1s a good thing to
give thanks unto the Lord, and to sing praises
unto Thy name, O Most Highest.”” Every day
he repeated the ninety-second and following
Psalms to the end of the ninety-eighth. Among
the courtiers of King Henry I. he was famous
for his witty conversation, at the time when
the character of the King’s clerical associates
was indicated by the fact that he promoted
Roger, afterwards Bishop of Sarum and one of
the benefactors of St. Bartholomew’s Priory,
because he had come across no man who could
say Mass in less time. The loss of the heir to
the throne in the White Ship wrought a great
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solemn blessing: “ This spiritual house Al-
mighty God shall inhabit and hallow it, and
glorify it, and His eyes shall be opened, and
His ears intending, on this house night and
day, that the asker in it shall receive, the
seeker shall find, and the ringer or knocker
shall enter.” The vision disappeared, and
when Rahere woke he discussed with himself
whether it was a mere dream or a message
from heaven. He decided that the direction
he had received must not be neglected, and
having entered the Order of the Canons Regu-
lar of St. Austin, returned to London intent
upon the fulfilment of his vows, to found a
hospital, and to build a church. He sought
the help of Richard de Belmeis, Bishop of
London, who had been his friend before his
conversion. The Bishop was a powerful states-
man, who had long served the King as a
governor on the borders of Wales, and he
obtained for Rahere a grant of some of the
waste land in Smithfield. Here he built his
Priory, and the following is the account of that
event, which was preserved therein till the
library was dispersed :—

““The church was founded in the month of
March, in the name of Our Lord Jesus Christ,
in memory of St. Bartholomew the Apostle,
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ordination of clergy; and that as any church
in all England is free, so this church be free,
and all the lands to 1t appertaining, which it
now has, or which Rahere the Prior, or the
Canons, may be able reasonably to acquire,
whether by purchase or by gift. And it shall
have socc and sace, and thol and theme, and
mfogheneteof ; and all hberties and free cus-
toms and acquittances in all things which
belong to the same church, in wood and in
plain, in meadows and pastures, in waters and
mills, in ways and paths, in pools and vineyards,
and marshes and fisheries, in granges and
copses, within and without, and in all places
now and for ever.

“This church, moreover, with all things that
appertain unto the same, know ye that 1 will to
maintain and defend, and to be free as my
crown, and have taken into my hand in defence
against all men. Wherefore I grant to Rahere,
and to the same church, in all its own juris-
diction and possession, the breach of peace and
fight made in the house, and the invasion of
house or court, and all forfeitures made in its
own jurisdiction, and forestal and flemeneferm-
deth, in the way and without, in the feast and
without, in the city and without; also, that it
may have discussions of causes and the rights






16 THE CHURCH OF

the aforesaid church concerning anything which
belongs thereto ; or introduce himself without
the consent of the prior or brethren; and that
no man, of the clergy or laity, presume to usurp
dominion of that place.

“1 confirm also all privileges and donations
and charters, both which it has or is about to
have, from kings, from popes, or other faithful
persons whatsoever. And whatsoever shall be
remembered and proved to have been justly
granted and acquired by the same church, by
writing or by the testimonies of good men, that
no person presume, upon any pretence, claim,
judgment, or power, to take or disperse the
same.

““ After the death, moreover, of Rahere the
Prior, out of the same assembly let him who 1s
worthy be chosen; but let no one be chosen
from elsewhere owing to the influence of
prelates or princes, unless in open decision no
one can be found worthy of such office, and if
it should happen that there is no one fit, let
them have the power of choosing a prior from
some other known and friendly place. But the
possessions which have been there given, or
purchased by any persons, whether separated
from the church by the consent of the Chapter,
or reduced to a small service, may be recalled
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the Holy Trinity, that they maintain and
defend this sacred place by royal authority, and
that they grant and confirm the liberties by me
oranted to 1t.

““ And the witnesses of this my grant are
Henry, Bishop of Winchester; Roger, Bishop
of Sarum ; Bernard, Bishop of St. David’s ;
Geoffry the Chancellor ; Stephen, Earl of Mor-
taigne ; William de Albini, the Breton ; Alberie
de Vere ; Richard Basset ; Milo de Gloucester ;
Pain Iitz-John ; Robert de Cure1; Hugh Bigot,
and many other barons of my kingdom.

“ And this charter 1 have made and ordered
to be confirmed at Westminster, in the year of
our Lord’s incarnation 1133, and in the 33rd
year of my reign.”

The Archbishop to whom this charter was
addressed was himself an Augustiman Canon,
and had been Prior of Bishop Richard’s foun-
dation of Chich, or St. Osyth’s, in HEssex. . It
was he who crowned King Stephen. g

The witnesses were among the greatest men.
of the time, and most of their names appear
again and again in William of Malmesbury’s
account of the wars of ng Stephen. _ ;

The Bishop of Winchester, Henry of Blois,
was a younger brother of Stephen. He ordained
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Alberic de Vere was the king’s chamberlain,
and was famous in his day for knowledge of the
law. An oration of his in defence of the arrest
of Bishop Roger, and other acts of Stephen,
delivered at Winchester in 1139, and preserved
by Henry of Huntingdon, shows much subtle
reasoning, and may perhaps be considered the
earliest extant speech in KEngland of a counsel
learned in the law. He was certainly the most
learned of the laymen, and has sometimes been
spoken of as the first lawyer who founded a
creat family in England. Twenty Earls of
Oxford were descended from him, of whom the
last died in 1702. He himself was killed in a
ficht in the streets of London.

Milo de Gloucester, Earl of Hereford, and
governor of the castle of Gloucester, was a
supporter of the Empress Maud. He did some
hard fighting against the Welsh when they
were besieging Cardigan, and it is a curious
coincidence that the next witness, Pain Fitz-
John, lost his life in the same war.

Robert de Curei, who founded a convent of
Benedictine. nuns at Canyngton in. Somerset,
was sewer to the Empress Maud.

Hugh Bigot, King Henry’s seneschal, gave
most important assistance to Stephen by
solemnly swearing that King .Henry while
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once covered the whole space nf t.he present
churchyard.

A new porch in the perpendicular style, with
a figure of Rahere in a niche above the door,
erected 1n 1893, leads into the church through
the base of a brick tower built in 1628, and
altered in the beginning of this century. It
has battlements and a small bell turret on the
top, and contains a peal of five bells bearing
the following inscriptions :—

I. Sancte Bartholomee. Ora pro Nobis.
I1. Sancta Katerina. Ora pro Nobis.
III. Sancta Anna. Ora pro Nobis.
IV. Sancte Johannes Baptiste. Ora pro Nobis.
V. Sancte Petre. Ora pro Nobis.

All bear a foundry stamp, which 1s assigned
to Thomas Bullesdon, who died about 1510.
They are among the oldest in Londou, and
belong to the Augustinian Canons.

At the dissolution some more bells were sold
to the parish of St. Sepulchre, where they have
been recast and form part of a melodious peal,
the chimes of which have been commemorated
in a piece of music composed by Lady Paget,
who lived for several years in hearing of them
when her husband, Sir James Paget, was
warden of St. Bartholomew’s College.
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triforium on to the roodloft. Below and
above this door are string-courses. The upper
storey is occupied by one bay of a pointed
clerestory of the Harly English style, which
was probably that of the nave. On the ground
is a single Norman arch, through which on the
north side a door used to lead up a flight of
eleven steps into Cloth Fair. A house which
stood on the right at the top of the steps was
long inhabited by Mrs. Charlotte Hart, for
many years pew opener in the church. She
spent most of her time in the church, and was
fond of it. Several pictures of it were decora-
tions which contrasted strangely with the
squalor and bareness of the room in which she
lived. An endeavour was made to persuade
her, in her last illness, to come into Rahere’s
hospital, but she would not. When she died it
was found that she had saved about £2,900,
and had bequeathed £600 of it to the Restora-
tion Fund of the church, a testimony of the
impression produced upon her mind by this
gsolemn building. Her house and the steps
were removed preparatory to the building of
the present north transept.

Two of the Norman piers of the ancient
transept are to be seen at the point of junction
with the church.
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middle as far as the altar steps, then: turning
to the north at Rahere’s tomb and walkmg
round the ambulatory and aisle. .

~Kast of the organ screen, the church consists
Df'hhe arches of the central tower, succeeded
by five bays, and terminated by an apse of five
arches, with an aisle extending all round from
the north transept to the west door. These
parts are perfect. In addition, more or less
ruinous fragments remain of the Lady Chapel
east of the ambulatory, of both tralisépts,; of
Lhapels in the north and south aisle and adjoin-
ing, but outside the church ; @nd of one side
of the cloister. The internal length of the
church is a little more than ]30 bet 1138 b1 eadt’-h
57 feet. ! o R Toaegid

The arches and piers and the thﬂe tri-
forium are of the best period of the Norman
style. The piers are circular, with short, sohd,
cushioned capitals. The arches of the triforium
have zigzag and billet mouldings, and each
includes four small arches on long pillars with
a broad tympanum above them. The height
of the tower arches demonstrates that the
original clerestory was of the present elevation,
while the absence of vaulting shafts on the
walls shows that the roof was a wooden one,
probably with a painted wooden ceiling, such
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A manuscript which belonged to the library
of the Priory, and the original of which was
composed by one of the Augustinian Canons
in the reign of Henry II, relates that in the
priorate of Rahere’s successor, Thomas of St.
Osyth, who presided from a.p. 1143 to A.n.
1174, the number of Canons was increased from
thirteen to thirty-five, with corresponding in-
crease of buildings.

The eastern bays of the choir had been built
under the eyes of Rahere,and in all probability
Prior Thomas carried on the work and saw the
tower finished before he died. This Thomas,
who had been a Canon of St. Osyth’s in Essex,
an Augustinian foundation of Rahere’s friend
Bishop Richard, is thus deseribed by one of his
own Society :—*“This Thomas as we haveprovyd
in comyn, was a man of jocunde companye, and
felowly jocundite, of grete eloquence, and of
grete cunnynge, instruct in philosophy, and in
dyvyne bokys exercisid and he hadde yt in
prompte, what sumever he wolde uttir, to speke
yt metyrly, and he hadde in use every solempne
day, whan the case requyrid, to dispense the
worde of God, and flowynge to hym the prees
of peple, he yave and so addid to hym glorie
utward, that ynward hadde yeve hym this
grace. He was prelate to us mekly almost xxx
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tholomew’s the light mouldings, the great
traceried spaces filled with stained glass, and
the splendid roofing of the Perpendicular
architecture. The corbels of the westérn tower
arch are the smallest of his changes. His
greatest was the building of an eastern wall
cutting off the apse from the church, thus
making its east end square, instead of round.
This wall was to be pierced by two large east
windows. Fragments of the tracery of these
windows were found during the rebuilding of
the apse, and are preserved in the Lady Chapel.
The wall was built of the materials of the
Norman apse, the whole upper part of which
was pulled down. Many pieces of the Norman
work still retaining some of its original colour-
ing were discovered during the works, and are
preserved in the building. In 1865, part of
this wall was removed, and an iron beam
placed across the church to support the re-
mainder, and the ground part of the apse
completed. _

The complete and beautnfnl modern apse,
reproducing the precise size and the general
architectural features of the apse. destroyed
when the square end was begun, is the work
of Mr. Aston Webb. All who can remembeér
the church 1n its old disfigcured state feel that
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projecting part of the factory was purchased
by the Rev. F. P. Phillips, the patron of
the living, and the apse was rebuilt, at his
charge, in memory of the Rev. John Abbis,
his uncle, for sixty-four years rector of the
parish.

The oak stalls which stand under the tower
were a further gift of the patron.

On the north wall, below the corbel table of
the tower arch, 1s the monument of Sir Robert
Chamberlayne. The knight is kneeling on a
cushion, under a curtained canopy, which is
supported by angels, and surmounted by a
panel containing his arms, above which 18 an
interrupted pediment with his crest in the
centre. He is in the partial armour of his time,
and his costume, as well as his figure and
his bearded face, are admirably executed.
The sculptor has turned the figure a lttle
obliquely, so that the knight, looking towards
the interior of the recess, seems regardless
of the outer world, and praying in the spirit
of the injunction, “ But thou when thou
prayest enter into thy closet, and when thou
hast shut thy door pray to thy father which
is in secret.”

The inscription is difficult to read. It tells
how Sir Robert Chamberlayne was son of the
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- The parentage of Sir Robert Chamberlayne
1s not told by his friend. He was knighted at
King James I.’s coronation, July 25th, 1603,
and was probably a grandson of Sir Edward
Chamberlayne, of Sherburn Castle, a gentle-
man of ancient descent, who served on land
against the French under the Marquis of
Dorset, in 1512, and commanded a ship in the
fleet of Lord Edmund Howard in the battle of
Brest, in 1513, and after these wars died peace-
fully at home. 'This monument is worthy of
the descendant of so gallant a knight ; and like
many of its period 1s full of devotional feeling,
and free from the worldly pomp or tasteless
ornament which so often spoil the monuments
of the last century.

The pillars of the first arch beyond Chamber-
layne’s cenotaph are attached. 'The billet
moulding is continued from this arch along the
wall at the level of the abacus of the capital.
Between this moulding and the base course of
the triforium is an oval tablet of white marble
with scroll-work border, supported by cherubs
and surmounted by a coat of arms. It com-
memorates an important benefactor of the
parish, and deserves to be given in full.

In the _
Sounth aisle
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and perhaps felt before he resigned that he was
unequal to the official labours of a new impend-
ing war.

Her Royal Highness the Duchess of Albany
laid the foundation stone of the present build-
ing of the schools which he endowed, on July
Sth, 1888, on the south side of the Lady
Chapel.

On the south wall, opposite Sir Robert
Chamberlayne’s, is a curious monument of
brown marble, coloured black. It was erected
by their children to Percival Smalpace and his
wife, in the year 1588. Their heads, in the
style of Queen Elizabeth’s reign, project from
square compartments in the upper part.

During the reign of Queen Mary, the Priory
buildings had for a short time been occupied
by the Dominicans, and Percival Smalpace had
perhaps heard the exhortation of monks, well
read in St. Thomas Aquinas, from a seat just
below the place whence he has for three hundred
years seemed to stretch forward his head in
impartial attention to every kind of sermon :
to loyalty, as in the year of the Restoration
of King Charles, and in that of Her present
Majesty’s happy Jubilee ; to treason sometimes,
as on February 5th, 1645, when £1 12s. 4d.
was collected for the Army of the Parliament ;.
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tion ; and several of the discoveries of medical
science may justly be considered part of the
fruits of his good deed. |

His generous heart would have liked to hear
the passage at which the Latin Bibles of the
little kneeling monks are open : ““ For the Lord
shall comfort Zion; He will comfort all her
waste places, and He will make her wilderness
like Eden and her desert like the garden of the
Lord. Joyand gladness shall be found therein,
thanksgiving and the voice of melody.”

Smithfield was the wilderness which Rahere
had cultivated, and in this church he had often
preached. |

A report of his preaching, taken from those
who had heard him, says: “ And in this wise
he delivered his sermon, that now he stirred
his audience to gladness so that all the people
applauded him, and then again he urged them
to sadness and sorrow for their sins so that all
the people were compelled to sighing and weep-
ing.” “ His life,” says the same biography,
‘““accorded to his speech, and his deed approved
well his sermon.”

The biography from which these passages
are taken was written in Latin in the Priory in
the reign of King Henry II., and was translated
into English in the reign of Richard II. A
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Bolton, Prior from 1506 to 153d, a crosshow
bolt passing through a wine tun.
He i1s mentioned by Ben Jonson,

“ Prior Bolton with his bolt in tan,”

and his rebus is also to be seen in the spandrels
of a doorway at the east end of the south aisle.

The window was probably built for the pur-
pose of watching the founder’s tomb, like the
similar chamber opposite the shrine of St. Alban
in St. Alban’s Abbey.

The present wooden altar was the gift of
Miss Overbury, sister-in-law of the late rector,
the Rev. W. Panckridge, and the mosaic pave-
ment on which it stands 1s one of the many
gifts of the Rev. F. P. Phillips, the patron.

The north aisle contains three small side
chapels, and beyond them is the sacristy, which
occupies the site of an ancient chapel. In the
middle chapel of the three are two marble
tablets with carved borders. |

One is in memory of the parents of John
Whiting, founder of the parish schools. Its
inscription 18 :

Near this place lyeth buried the bodies of
John Whiting and Margaret his
wife who lived lovingly together
in holy wedlock in this parish 40

yeares and npward and dyed in peace,
The said Margaret dyed on Easter
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upon he ¢ confessed that he had practised
Physick in London for six months, and had
cured twenty or more of divers diseases to
whom he had given purging and vomiting
Physick, to others a diaphoretic medicine pre-
pared from gold and mercury as the cases
required ; but withall acknowledged he had no
Licence to Practice. He was examined in the
several parts of physick, and found very weak
and ignorant; wherefore he was interdicted
practice.”

The empiric’s son, Dr. John Anthony, was a
regular practitioner of medicine, and wrote
some theological books.

The next monument 1s a marble tablet with
pillars, and with six books carved as a base,
erected by his son Samuel, to the memory of
Thomas Roycroft, the printer of the great
bible, edited by Walton, and known as the
London Polyglot. It gives the Hebrew, Latin,
Greek, Chaldean, Arabic, Samaritan, Syriac,
Persian and Ethiopic versions of the Seriptures
with a Latin version of each, and its printing
was begun at the press of Thomas Royecroft, in
Bartholomew Close, at the end of September,
1653, went on with aregularity astonishing for
so complex a work, and finally appeared after
the restoration of the King, who was pleased
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B

Just beyond this tablet the plain round arched
vaulting of the ambulatory ceases, and two
loftier pointed arches, standing east and west,
probably built early in the fifteenth century,
mark the passage leading into the Lady Chapel.
These arches were uncovered when the fringe
factory was removed on the rebuilding of the
apse in 1886.

The brick wall east of and between these
arches 1s temporary, and has been built to pro-
tect the church from fire. A door in this wall
at the top of a small flight of wooden steps
leads into the Lady Chapel.

In the north wall of the Lady Chapel part of
1ts windows remain, and on the south, outside,
the original buttresses are standing. Part of
the unaltered crypt wall, with deeply splayed
unglazed lights, and a portion of its vault, a
single span of twenty-two feet of chalk, with
stone ribs, exist, and will be further exposed to
view as the works progress.

To return to the church. At the end of the
south aisle in the ambulatory 1s a modern win-
dow, and near it are a few tiles of the original
flooring. Close to the window, on the north
side, 1s a marble tablet with a Latin inseription,
telling that it was put up by Maria, wife of
Anthony Lowe, Esquire, a barrister of the
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Inner Temple. He died April 29th, 1641,
after forty-four years of married life, was
buried in this church, and left an only son,
Arthur, and three daughters, Frances, Beatrice,

and Jane.

Hic jacet
Anthonius Lowe Armiger: de interiori templo juris
consultus peritissimus; vir: Antique fidei et probitatis
Unicum reliquit filinm : Arthurum, et tres filias
Franciscam, Beatricem, et Janam : Placide in Domino
obdormivit
Vicesimo nono die Aprilis: Anno Domini 1641
Maria uxor ¢jus (qua cum conjunctissime vixerat
pene annos 44, quaeque suos cineres cum ipsius misceri
admodum exoptab) Merens, Dolensque posuit.

In the south wall of the aisle is a handsome
doorway, which has Prior Bolton’s rebus, the
bolt in tun, carved in its spandrels, and was
built by him. It leads into a schoolroom.

On the wall east of 1t 1s a tablet, which re-
cords the longest life of any in the church.

Near this place lies ye Body
of James Master of Eust Longdon in ye County
of Kent Esq. he married Joyce only daughter of
Christopher Tornor of Milton-Ernest in y
County of Bedford, one of y¢ Barons of y¢ Court of Ex-
chequer
in y© reign of King Charles y¢ 2 by whom
he had 4 Sons & 10 Daughters. He departed this Life
Aug. 9 1702 Aged 75.

He was y*© Son of Richard Master of East
Langdon Esq. by Ann his Wife Daughter of
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summer day when his son was happily restored,
and the terrible Plague and the great Fire, the
Revolution which established our present con-
stitution, and the death of Queen Mary and of
King William, and the accession of Queen
Anne, and perhaps used to say to her grand-
children, “ When I was a little girl good Queen
Anne was on the throne, and now I have hived
to see Queen Anne again in my old age.”
Shakespeare was a living author when Mrs.
Master was a child, and she saw the rise of
Milton, and of Dryden, and survived both.
Her brother was one of the first Governors of
Bombay, and 1s-buried there.

On the west side of Prior Bolton’s door is a
more modern tablet :—

On the south side of the altar
are deposited the remains of
Williams Phillips Taylor,
of Worcester College, Oxford,
and Bath, Somerset, Esquire,
Who died Sept 10th 1829 Aged 22 years

He was the only son of George Taylor, Esquire
Lieut.-Colonel in His Majesty’s service
and Companion of
the most honourable order of the Bath,
And grandson of the late William Phillips, Esquire
Patron of this Church. : :
This monument was erected
by an affectionate mother to her only son.

A door in the aisle, a little further west, 1s
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founder of his family was Lord Mayor in the
fifteenth year of the reign of Queen Elizabeth.

Beyond the furnace-room door 18 another
half-length figure under a canopy and holding
a book.

The inscription illustrates the then prevail-
ing taste for conceits in verse. -

Hic inhumatum sueceubat, quantum terrestre viri

Vere venerandi, Edwardi Cooke Philosophi
Approme docti nec non Medici spectatissimi
“Qui tertio Idus Augusti Anno Dom. 1652,

Annoque mtatis 32, certa resurgendi spe

(utinecesse) nmature concessit
Unsluice yo' briny floods, what! can ye keepe,
Yo' eyes from teares and see the marble weepe
Burst out for shame or if yee find noe vent
For teares, yet stay, and see the stones relent.

Edward Cooke is unknown at the College of
Physiciang, and he was probably interested n
physic rather than trained in the art.

The next tomb is that of Sir Walter Mild-
may, Chancellor of the Exchequer to Queen
Elizabeth, and founder of Emmanuel College,
Cambridge. Sir Walter, who was one of the
special commissioners at the trial of Mary
Queen of Scots, spent his life in the service
of the state. He was a rigid Puritan, and
on his tomb there arc no figures, but six
shields arranged in a border testify to the illus-

trious alliances of his family. The arms on












62 THE CHURCH OF

The Turkey and the Indian trade;
Advantage by his dangers made;
Till a convenient fortune found,
His honesty and labours crown’d.

A just faire dealer he was knowne,
And his estate was all his owne

Of which hee had a heart to spare
To freindshipp and the poore a share.

And when to time his period fell
Left his kind wife and children well
Who least his vertues dye unknowne
Committ his memory to this stone.

Obiit anno ®tatis 59 Anno domini 1660 Decembris 12°

A little further west in the aisle is the open-
ing of the south transept, now restored. It
consists of one bay of Norman work, the tri-
forium arches of which have peculiarly beauti-
ful and well preserved mouldings, and of
another bay and south end with a central door
added by Mr. Aston Webb, and opened for use
by the present Bishop of London, on March
14th, 1891.

The font has been placed in this transept,
as well as two monuments formerly affixed to
the wall of the south aisle. A small door near
them leads into the south triforium, which was
opened up and roofed in 1891. The monument
of Elizabeth Freshwater bears her effigy kneeling
in a great ruff and well-dressed hair at a little
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Bishoprie of Liondon, to which he was installed
on June 20th, 1405, but only lived till Novem-
ber 2nd, 1406.

Perhaps the most learned person, who was
one of the Augustinian Canons, but the exact
site of whose tomb is now unknown, was John
Mirfeld, author of the ¢ Breviarium Bartholo-
mei,”” one of the chief medizeval treatises on
medicine composed in England. It was written
in this priory about the year 1380. A splendid
copy of it, transeribed in the author’s lifetime,
may be seen at Pembroke College, Oxford.

The plan of the Breviarium is that of most
of the treatises on general medicine of the
Middle Ages.

It begins with a preface, followed by fifteen
sections. The first is of fevers; the second, of
affections of the whole body; the third, of
affections of the head, neck, and throat; the
fourth, of the chest and its contents ; the fifth,
of the abdomen ; the sixth, of the pelvic organs ;
the seventh, of the legs; the eighth, of boils ;
the ninth, of wounds and bruises; the tenth, of
fractures and dislocations and twists of bones ;
the eleventh, of dislocations of joints ; the
twelfth, of simple medicines, the list of which
18 gone through in alphabetical order; the
thirteenth, of compound medicines ; the four-
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cular occasions of the disease, and these are
sometimes associated with practices taken from
the prevalent folk lore. A little twig of hazel,
a foot long, is to be broken in the middle. The
two parts are to be held a little way apart and
certain words repeated, and by virtue of the
words the twig becomes united in some place.
Here it 1s to be held by finger and thumb, and
the rest cut away so that there is a little cross.
This the feverish man is to hold above him,
and to say some words in French, and five
Pater Nosters, and he will be healed, as has
often been proved, says the  Breviarium.”

Mirfeld treated leprosy, he tells us, with
some success with golden pills and a restricted
diet. This included bread, two parts rye and
one-third barley, clear, well-scented wine, game
rather than flesh of domestic animals, and eggs.
Cheese, pulse, hares, salt meat, and putrefied
food were to be avoided.

The leprosy in one of his cases was relieved
for three years, but after that appeared again.
- Ointment made from goose-fat is one of his
chief remedies for gout; and the fat of the
badger 1s also recommended.

He treated chronic rheumatism by rubbing
the part with olive oil. This was to be pre-
pared with ceremony. It was to be put into a
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his two hind legs, and the Canon fell head
downwards over the crupper of the horse to
earth. And fell so heavily upon his head that
straightway he lost the sensation and movement
of his whole body. My master having been
called by the friends of the patient, made them
shave his head, and then rubbed in oil of roses
with a quart of warm vinegar, and sprinkled it
with a powder, and put over it a fine cloth
soaked in the aforesaid oil and vinegar, and
over that fastemed linen stoups and bound
with bandages his whole head, and put over
all the skin of a lamb. And every day he
visited him twice, and rubbed in ointment into
his neck and as far as the middle of the spine.
On the second day the patient opened his mouth
a little. Then one of his friends wished to try
if he would eat, but the physician would not
allow it, and said, ¢ Even if he wished to eat 1
would not let him.” On the third day when a
question was put to him, he tried to answer,
stammering, but he could not form the words.
On the fourth day he spoke stammeringly, and
then they handed him a thin warm drink, which
he saw and swallowed. The fifth day he took
a thin tisane. On the sixth day they gave him
chicken broth. He then began to grow stronger,
little by little, and to be able to move, but 1t
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Cem e o

and College attended, it being the first time
that the statute-book of the College, adorned
with silver, was carried before the President.
He was buried at St. Bartholomew the Great.”
Machyn, in his diary under January 22nd,
1557, says, “The sam day was bered doethur
Bartelett, fessyssyon at Blakefriers, at Sant
Barthellmew in Smythfeld, with a dozen of
skochyons of arms and 1 whyt branchys and
11 torchys and iiii gret tapurs.” Dr. Bartlot
took interest in the history of the place and
told Leland the historian all about Mirfeld. He
was a Fellow of All Soul’s College, Oxford, and
died in 1557, aged eighty-six. All traces of
Dr. Bartlot’s tomb have disappeared.

Lady Cisele Mansfield, says Machyn, was
buried before the high altar, at the head of
old Prior Bolton.

In 1657 the Tuscan ambassador, Amerigo
Salvetti, was buried here after a long hfe of
diplomacy and repeated escapes from assassina-
tion.

Many more whose monuments have dis-
appeared, have been entombed in this ancient
precinct, or have had requiem sung for them
within the venerable walls of this church, from
the day when Rahere was buried in it in 1143,
to the day in 1887, when it was filled to over-
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temporary, stands by it on its original site and
Smithfield, after more than seven centuries and
a half, is still an open space. Not far from the
gate of the Close stately buildings mark the
site and retain the name of the St. Martin’s-le-
Grand known to Rahere, while the dome and
cross of St. Paul’s, visible in the same street,
show that the land on which a cathedral had
stood five hundred years before St. Bartholo-
mew’s the Great was built is still covered by
the greatest ecclesiastical building of London.

Thus after the changes of so many centuries
something of the London with which Rahere
was familiar remains around his home and
tomb. It is surely right to do all that can be
done to preserve the place in which rests a
man whose kind thought and well-fulfilled vow
have brought so much comfort to so many sick
men, women, and children.





















